
AGENDA



 

 

 

Greater Thetford Development 
Partnership 

Board 

 
16th June 2017 10.00am- 12.00pm 

 

Back Hall 

Church on the Way 

Grenville Way 

Thetford 

Norfolk 

IP24 2JH   

11

Agenda Item 1



AGENDA 
Item Lead 

1 Apologies 

2 Minutes and matters arising from 21st April 2017 Graham Jermyn 

3 Vision and Objectives 

Acceptance and ownership – see attached. 

Graham Jermyn 

4 “The past, present and future role of Access Community 
Trust in the Greater Thetford Area”. 

To receive a presentation from Emma Ratzer (Chief Executive of 
Access) and Alison Arnold (Manager, John Room House, 
Thetford) 

5 Planning and Projects Sub Group update 

a. Preliminary work carried out re Objective 1
b. Green Infrastructure – feedback from Community Sub-Group
c. Integrated Delivery Plan
d. Terms of Reference

Richard Doleman 

6 Inward Investment Sub Group update 

Nothing to report – next meeting in July 2017. 

7 Project Update 

a. TEP report – see attached
b. Signage update

Robert Walker 

8 Community Sub Group – see attached. Robert Whittaker 

9 Organisational updates 

Representatives to report on any matters of interest in their area. 

Robert Campbell 

10 Future Agenda Items 

Board Members will be invited to raise any agenda items prior to 
future meetings so that responses can be available at the 
meeting.  This will reduce Any Other Business to emergency 
items only. 

All 

11 Any Other Business All 

12 Date of Next Meeting 

11th August 2017 at 10.00am in the Captain Mainwaring Room, 
The Bell Hotel, King’s Street, Thetford IP24 2AZ 

13 Questions from the Public 

2 2



AGENDA ITEM 2 

 

Greater Thetford Development Partnership Board 
Minutes 

21st April 2017 at 10.00am 
The Charles Burrell Centre, Staniforth Road, Thetford 

Chair:  Graham Jermyn GJ 
 
Attendees: 
Board Members 
Mike Brown MB(Thetford Business Forum), Robert King RK(Croxton Parish Council), Terry Jermy 
TJ (Thetford Town Council), John Newton JN(Sub)(Thetford Town Council), Richard Doleman 
RD(Norfolk County Council), Rob Walker RW(Breckland Council), Robert Whitaker 
RWh(Communities sub-group chair), Robert Howes-Ward RHW(Primary Care/Health Care), 
Caroline Money CM(Norfolk County Council), Adam Broadway AB(Flagship), Paul Wheatley 
PW(Norfolk Police), Sam Chapman-Allen SCA(Breckland Council), Will Van Cutsem WVC(Pigeon), 
Chris Hey CH(Norfolk County Council) 
 
Minutes 
Helen McAleer HM(Breckland Council) 
 
Apologies: Tony Poulter TP(Brettenham & Kilverstone Parish Council), Robert Campbell 
RC(Breckland Council – sub-group chair) 
 
Item  

 Robert Howes-Ward was welcomed to the Partnership and introductions were made 
round the table. 
 
The meeting would start with a Private session which would be followed by a public 
session.  The Chairman had received some criticism about lack of transparency and he 
asked for a view about having a pre-meeting instead of a private session.    He 
recognised the need for transparency, but felt it was critical to complete the work on 
vision and objectives and to reach agreement before making that public.  Once 
agreement had been reached progress could be made. 
 
RW thought that private sessions were OK as long as they were used appropriately.  It 
would also be helpful if support officers could meet between Board meetings.  
 
TJ did not have a problem with using private sessions, as long as the public part of the 
meetings was better publicised to promote engagement.   
 
RWh agreed that there was a place for private discussion but it needed to be made clear 
to the public what was being discussed and why it needed to be in private and a summary 
of outcomes should be available for the public record.  
 

  PRIVATE SESSION Action 
 

1. 
 
Review of Vision and Objectives and Key Issues, agreement on 
consultation and publication. 
 
RW tabled a paper which set out the outcomes from the last meeting and 
the away days.  Some amendments had been made to the Objectives to 
make them plainer and minor additions had been made in accordance with 
suggestions from the last meeting. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

RW 
 

33



After discussion it was agreed that RW would make the changes suggested 
and circulate the amended list which could then be signed off in public at 
the next meeting.  
 
The six Objectives were AGREED. 

2. Planning and Projects Sub Group’s proposals re Green Infrastructure 
 
This item had been included on the agenda because of its relationship to 
the objectives. 
 
It was agreed that the covering report could be made public and the 
Chairman asked for the proposals to be considered in the open session of 
the meeting.   
 
The Chairman asked that the contribution that Richard Wills had made to 
the firming up of the aims and objectives by facilitating the away days be 
minuted. 
 

 

 PUBLIC SESSION  
3. 
 

Apologies. 
 
Apologies were received from William van Cutsem, Sam Chapman-Allen 
and Chris Hey. 
 
On behalf of Board, the Chairman thanked Tig Armstrong and Rob Cooper 
for their contribution to the board and welcomed Robert Howes-Ward as 
Rob Cooper’s replacement. 
 

 
 

 

4. Minutes and Matters Arising from meeting of 17 February 2017. 
 
The Minutes of the meeting held on 17 February 2017 were agreed and the 
following matters were noted: 
 
Item 3:  A Public Space Protection Order was out for consultation.  
Feedback was encouraged and additional copies of the consultation were 
requested to be made available in places such as the Charles Burrell 
Community Centre.  
 
Item 5.  The Scouts had been put in contact with the Asset Team. 
With regard to the Cottage Hospital, RHW was on the Board to represent 
local surgeries.  Grove surgery were working on a small extension to the 
rear but that was being frustrated by lack of space.  The cottage hospital 
site was immediately behind the surgery.  It used to be in public ownership.  
He was trying to work with NHS England on an estate strategy for health 
care and he asked if the cottage hospital site was still under review. 
 
RW advised that a petition about the cottage hospital had been considered 
by BDC Council.  The site was in private ownership and following receipt of 
the petition, the owners had been contacted and were now in pre-planning 
consultation about a positive use of the site. RW would keep the Board 
updated on progress. 
 
TJ had been contacted by the GPs from Grove Surgery and he thought 
there was potential for an exciting project which the Board could facilitate.  
Further discussion between TJ and RW would take place outside the 
meeting. 
 
Item 8 – Health and LEP representatives would be invited later in the year 
once the aims and objectives had been confirmed. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

RW 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

RW 
 
 
 
 

TJ/RW 
 

4 4



5. Matters arising from work on Vision and Objectives 
 
These would be amended and circulated ready for sign off and agreement 
of a work programme at the next meeting. 
 

 
 

RW 

6. Communities Sub Group (Update)  
 
The following matters from the Sub-Group were noted: 
 

• King Street Square – possible health and safety issues were raised 
by MB.  The issues would be flagged to the Town Council as the 
responsible authority. 

• Thetford Bus Interchange - DC as the NCC representative was 
asked to seek a response to the concerns raised. 

• The GTDP website – content needed improvement.  Andy Prior 
was waiting for feedback before updating the site. 

• The sub-group would meet bi-monthly in future at King’s House. 
• A Cycling and Walking Routes survey was being carried out and 

the sub-group were assisting that work. 
• Concerns had been raised about GTDP lack of transparency and 

late papers. 
• The sub-group had not been notified about the PSPO consultation 

before it commenced. 
• Information on the SUE development was requested.  RW would 

contact Pigeon for an update.  Rumours about the school provision 
needed to be clarified.  

• Concern had been expressed about burial provision. 
 

 
 
 
 
 

JN 
 
 

DC 
 

RC/RD/RW 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

RW/WVC/ 
CH 

 
TJ/JN 

7. Planning and Projects Sub Group (Update) 
 
The sub-group had met on 24 March and had considered the objectives 
being set by the Board and reflected on how the group could help to identify 
projects which the Board could prioritise for future delivery. 
 
There was a lot of evidence available but it was not always easily 
accessible and there would definitely be a benefit to bring that evidence 
together and make it available. 
 
RD said it would be good to have steer from the Board on what the sub-
group should work on; it could then develop a programme of activity. 
 
It was AGREED that: 
 

• The Planning & Projects Sub Group should expand the review of 
the existing evidence base to cover further key themes.  The 
Planning & Projects Sub Group to suggest further themes for the 
Board that warrant further evidence review. 

• The Board would agree how potential projects should be 
considered by the GTDP to develop and deliver priorities; 

• A review of the Planning & Projects Sub-Group’s Terms of 
Reference be undertaken. 

 

 

8. Inward Investment Sub Group (Update) 
 
The Sub Group had met to review and comment on the six objectives.  It 
had also considered its Terms of Reference. 
 
The sub group had been set up to look for funding to support projects, but it 
had not received any requests for assistance. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

55



 
MB said the Business Forum were frustrated by the lack of progress with 
the TEP.  In particular, the allocation of over £500k from Breckland Council 
funds towards a roundabout that did not appear to be going ahead. 
  
MB asked for more detail at the next meeting including the funds that have 
been raised for the TEP project and timescales for further progress. 
  
RC explained that that was a large on-going project which was being driven 
separately from the sub group.  The role of the sub group was to focus on 
new projects.  He had attended meetings about the design of the TEP 
roundabout and more work was being done to re-cost the project. 
 
The Chairman confirmed that as pressure points arose the Board would 
lobby and provide input, but at the previous meeting he had made clear that 
the Partnership was not just about the TEP and the SUE.  It needed to be 
involved in other things.   
 
TJ asked who was leading the TEP project and he was advised that NCC 
would design and project manage the roundabout.  The contractor has not 
been chosen yet.  He was still not convinced that it would go ahead. 
 
RC explained that there were a number of constraints to the site, including 
a lack of access, shortage of power and no utilities.  They were all 
detrimental to getting private investment.  It had been agreed that removing 
one of those by providing a roundabout access would encourage private 
investment.  To bring new business to Thetford a new tech site was 
needed.  Discussion with partners was on-going about potential funding for 
power. 
 
More detail would be provided at the next meeting. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

RW/RC 
 

9. Any Other Business 
 
None. 
 

 

10. Date of Next Meeting 
 
The next meeting will be held on Friday 16 June 2017 at 10.00am in the 
Back Hall, Church on the Way, Grenville Way, Thetford, IP24 2JH. 
 

 
 

 

 

Meeting closed at 12.00noon. 

 

 

  

6 6



AGENDA ITEM 3 

Greater Thetford Development Partnership Board 

16th June 2017 

Item 3 – Vision, Objectives and the next steps 

The Vision, Strapline, Aim and Objectives have been discussed at a number of away sessions and 
Board meetings and the agreed version was distributed to Board Members recently. 

The next step is to formally accept those as the Board and “sign up” to them. 

The purpose of the Vision and Objectives is to provide an agreed framework within which we can 
commission projects and tasks to help develop the Greater Thetford Area. 

That is the next piece of work. 

At the meeting on 16th June, we will need to agree 2 Board Members to work on each of the 6 main 
objectives that we have.  These project teams will not replace the existing Sub Groups (Project and 
Planning, Inward Investment and Community).  The sub groups will continue and provide a resource 
to help the project teams as requested. 

The role of the project teams is to use the key tasks within their objective heading and research 
what key data and information is available (Green Infrastructure is an example of that), prioritise the 
tasks and report back to the Board with their initial work and then on a regular basis with progress. 

In this way we will maximize the benefit of the high level work we have done by translating it into 
action on the ground.  Something that most if not all of the Board Members have been seeking. 

Graham Jermyn 

Chair, Greater Thetford Development Partnership 

77



Friday 16th June 2017 

Greater Thetford Development Partnership 
Planning and Projects Sub Group Update 

The Greater Thetford Development Partnership Planning & Projects Sub Group met on Friday 19th 
May.  The Sub Group considered the outcomes of the Partnership Board on Friday 21st April and in 
particular the outcomes of the Board’s work on objective setting and the paper presented on Green 
Infrastructure project identification.   

Objectives and project identification. 

Work has commenced looking at Objective 1, to seek and lobby for investment and improvements in 
strategic infrastructure.  The Group has sought information from key contacts on the areas identified 
to establish the current position, any future activity and how the partnership can assist in the 
delivery.  The work is ongoing and progress will be reported to a future Board Meeting.   

Green Infrastructure Theme 

The Group considered the next steps for the Green Infrastructure work and it was agreed that the 
Communities Sub Group should look at the draft list of projects and identify:  

 Which projects would be a priority for early delivery

 Are there any projects that should be taken off the list; and

 Any obvious omissions.

The Group debated which evidence theme should be looked at next and it was agreed that the 
evidence focussed on the town centre. The reasons were that there was considered to be a 
significant body of evidence, interest and activity in this area.  The theme also provides a good fit 
with Objective 4, to revitalise Thetford town centre.   

Integrated Delivery Plan 

The work to develop the integrated delivery plan (IDP) has remained on hold.  The IDP will benefit 
from a significant revision to be structured around the Board’s objectives and priorities and to better 
reflect the projects that emerge to fulfil the Board’s objectives.   

Terms of Reference 

In line with the recommendation of the Board the Sub Group has prepared an updated terms of 
reference to reflect the purpose, work and functioning of the Sub Group.  A revised draft is attached 
as Appendix 1. 

Recommendations 

 The Board note progress on the objectives and the collation of evidence.

 The Board agree the revised terms of reference for the Planning and Projects Sub Group.

AGENDA ITEM 5

8



Friday 16th June 2017 

Appendix 1- Draft Planning and Projects Sub Group Terms of Reference 

Greater Thetford Development Partnership 

Planning and Projects Sub Group 

TERMS OF REFERENCE 

The Planning and Projects Sub Group is part of the Greater Thetford Development Partnership (GTDP) 
and will be governed by the GTDP’s Terms of Reference. 

Aims/Objectives: 

Through consultation with key stakeholders achieving planned growth and development delivery rates 
across the Greater Thetford growth area. 

Purpose:   

The purpose of the GTDP Planning and Projects Sub Group is: - 

1. To collate information on projects for delivery in the Greater Thetford area and in conjunction
with the other Sub Groups make recommendations to the Board on projects as priority for
funding and delivery.

2. To identify planning and infrastructure barriers to growth and develop solutions to overcome
process and delivery barriers as identified by the Sub Group or as directed by the GTDP Board;
and,

3. To work with key planning and infrastructure delivery agencies across the greater Thetford
area to ensure that there is effective and engagement with the work of the GTDP.

Roles and Responsibilities:  

The primary roles and responsibilities of the GTDP Projects and Planning Sub Group are: - 

 To act as an advisory body to the GTDP Board to ensure effective engagement of the key
stakeholders in the planning process and infrastructure relating to the growth and
development of Thetford and surrounding parishes.

 To develop an Infrastructure Delivery Plan in liaison with the Community and Inward
investment Sub Groups to support GTDP ambitions for development of the area.

 To oversee and report to the GTDP on the progress of projects within the Infrastructure
Delivery Plan.

 To actively engage with the planning process to identify issues and consider solutions to
secure necessary consents and approvals.

9



Friday 16th June 2017 

 To identify wider delivery agencies and service providers and engage them as necessary for
the identification and delivery of projects within their area of responsibility in the
infrastructure delivery plan.

 Share project information and priorities and work with the Inward Investment Sub Group to
identify where funding opportunities and shortfalls exist in the Infrastructure Delivery Plan.

 To work closely with the Community Sub Group to inform planning and project delivery of
local issues and priorities.

 To help influence decisions by making considered recommendations to the GTDP Board.

 To support the planned work of the GTDP Board.

Membership: 

The membership of the GTDP Planning and Projects Sub Group will be made up of those with a 
responsibility for planning functions and project delivery and will not replicate the organisational 
representation on the GTDP Board.   

 One representative from each major landowner.

 Two representatives from Breckland Council covering development management and

strategic planning and delivery.

 One representative from the Inward Investment Sub Group

 One representative from the Communities Sub Group

 Two representatives from Norfolk County Council Infrastructure and Economic Growth

Team.

 One representative from Thetford Town Council

 Other key delivery agents and service providers*

*Other members will be invited to join the work of the group on an as-needed basis.  Such bodies may
include, but not limited to, Highways England, NCC Children’s Services, the local CCG and Network
Rail.

The Chair of the Sub Group will be responsible for ensuring that the work of the GTDP Planning and 
Projects and Sub Group and other Sub Groups are synchronised.  The Chair will be nominated by the 
Planning and Projects Sub Group and agreed annually by the GTDP Board. 

The Chair of the Sub Group will formally present at meetings of the Board a summary progress report 
on the work of the Sub Group.    

Membership will be reviewed annually.  

Meetings: 

Scheduled meetings to tie in with the programme of GTDP Board meetings; however extraordinary 
meetings can be called at any time if deemed appropriate.    

Notes will be taken at each meeting and circulated no later than two weeks after the meeting. 

10



Friday 16th June 2017 

 
The meetings of the Sub Group will be held in private. 
 
 
Decision Making: 
  
As it is not formally constituted the Sub Group will not have delegated powers.  Therefore all 
recommendations from the Sub Group will require endorsement by the GTDP Board and the individual 
authorities that are represented on the Board.  
 

11



AGENDA ITEM 7a 

Greater Thetford Development Partnership 

Project Update Report: Thetford Enterprise Park 

June 2017 

OVERVIEW 
Thetford Enterprise Park is an 18ha development site on the northern side of Thetford, adjacent to 
the A11 dual carriageway. 

There are opportunities for land purchases, leases and joint ventures which will create a major 
technology focused enterprise park, both to provide new modern facilities for existing Thetford 
based companies and also to attract more high tech companies into the area.  Thetford has a 
substantial established manufacturing cluster and benefits from a well trained local workforce. 

It is estimated that the site has the capacity to deliver 52,940 sq m of employment space with 
additional potential for a hotel development.  The site has the potential to attract between 1,500 
and 2,500 jobs given its prime location within the Cambridge Norwich Tech Corridor (CNTC) and 
provides additional opportunities to attract high growth companies across a range of tech sectors. 

The site is immediately adjacent to the planned 5,000 home Sustainable Urban Extension (SUE) and 
the combination will be attractive to companies looking for new premises, in an affordable, well 
serviced location with excellent transport links. 

SITE CONSTRAINTS 

The site is constrained by lack of access and utilities which have been adversely impacting the 
viability of the TEP site at a key time in the evolution of the CNTC.  These include; 

- Requirement for an electricity power upgrade

- Requirement for a new Foul and Surface Drainage scheme

- Requirement for site access

Breckland Council has already committed £450k of the project total cost to undertake an essential 
Infrastructure Preliminary Programme (IPP) which is preparing for the major works listed above.  
This will include an updated Masterplan for the site and an updating of all technical specification 
requirements for the major works. 

The clear objective is to bring the site to a level of preparedness sufficient to attract substantial 
private sector investment to the site. 

Site Access 

In June 2016, the New Anglia LEP approved the redirection of existing approved funding of £1.98m 
from the original Thetford Sustainable Transport Package (Local Growth Funding) to prioritise the 
construction of a new access roundabout for the Thetford Enterprise Park. 

8 12



In January 2017, Norfolk County Council, on behalf of the Norfolk Leader’s group, confirmed that 
£450,000 secured from the Norfolk Business Rates Pool, could be used towards the cost of the TEP 
Access Roundabout. 

The current estimated design and construction cost of the roundabout is £2.2m.  It was agreed that 
any monies not required from the Thetford Sustainable Transport Package for the completion of the 
roundabout would be returned to the fund for use in other Thetford Transport schemes. 

In January 2017 Breckland Council approved the acceptance of the £450,000 of Norfolk Business 
Rates Pool funding towards the cost of the Thetford Enterprise Park Access Roundabout and 
authorised the Chief Executive to enter into an agreement with Norfolk County Council for the 
design and construction of the roundabout. 

Design work has commenced on the roundabout with the preliminary design on schedule to be 
completed by the end of June.  After this a planning application will be prepared and submitted with 
the aim of obtaining planning permission by early 2018.  This will be followed by a detailed design 
phase and then the construction of the roundabout.  The current estimate is to complete the 
construction by June 2019. 

Electricity Upgrade 

Thetford has been running close to full capacity on its electricity infrastructure for a number of 
years.  The planning work, in preparation for the start of the first phase of the Sustainable Urban 
Extension housing development, estimates that there is sufficient remaining power for circa. 350 
homes, plus one primary school and a small amount of non-residential land. 

A major upgrade of the electricity supply capability in Thetford is needed, both to provide power to 
the TEP and to ensure that further housebuilding is not constrained through lack of electricity 
power. 

A detailed proposal is being prepared but in summary:- a new Primary Substation will be required 
(space has been allocated on the SUE) together with new cabling to the nearest major power hub.  
The current cost estimate for the new Primary Substation and new cabling is circa. £6.5m.  Breckland 
Council is in discussions with the site promoter Pigeon, to explore funding solutions for this essential 
power infrastructure work. 

Foul and Surface Drainage scheme 

The TEP site requires a scheme to deal with both surface rain water and foul drainage.  The nearest 
suitable connection points are to the south west of the site.  An outline scheme is currently being 
prepared which requires drainage pipes to pass under the railway track.  Discussions have 
commenced with Network Rail and we will aim to have a costed scheme proposal completed by 
autumn 2017. 

Other utilities 

As part of the Infrastructure Preliminary Programme (IPP), schemes are being outlined and costed 
for the other essential TEP utilities including water, gas and broadband.  This work will take into 

913



account planned utilities development for the adjacent housing development, with the aim to have a 
coordinated plan covering both sites. 

Site Promotion 

A Masterplanning approach to site development is forming part of the approach and will focus on; 

- Ensuring that the TEP aligns closely with the vision for the Cambridge Norwich Technology
Corridor.

- Providing high quality grow-on space for existing technology companies located in Thetford.

- Ensuring that the TEP can contribute directly to increasing the technology skills base of
Breckland.

The Thetford Enterprise Park is an important contributor to the new CNTC project, which urgently 
needs deliverable employment sites as part of its marketing strategy.  The current project will allow 
the commencement of the TEP’s first marketing phase as part of the CNTC marketing roll-out. 

It is hoped to feature the Thetford Enterprise Park at the major land development show MIPIM UK 
2017, as part of the New Anglia LEP’s site development showcase. 

10 14



June 2017 

Greater Thetford Development Partnership Board  
Project Update Report: Thetford Signage and Traffic Management 

The County Council is progressing a Growth Deal funded project to improve town centre car park, 
pedestrian signage and traffic management.  The project is split into 2 phases.  The signage phase is 
well underway with delivery expected in July 2017. 

Phase 2 is looking at traffic management improvements in the town centre.  At the moment this 
work is being briefed. It is expected that there will be stakeholder and public consultation as part of 
the work to develop and deliver improvements.   

Timelines for phase 1 and 2 are set out below 

Phase 1 Signing 

Design Brief and Preliminary Design 
• Delivery programme
• Contractor’s Early Contractors Involvement (ECI)
• Preliminary sign design

Complete 

Statutory Consultation 
• Stakeholders consultation (Statutory Consultees to
include Town Council, Local Members and Norfolk Constabulary).
• Public Utilities

Complete 

Detail Design 
• Detail design of signing
• Design checking process
• Contract documentation

Complete 

Pre-construction 
• Contractor’s Involvement for ordering of Works
• Temporary Traffic Management (TTM)

May 17 

Construction Late July 17 

Phase 2 Traffic management brief 

LA and Stakeholder Workshops June/July 17 

Design Oct 17 

Consultation Dec 17 

Construction March 18 

AGENDA ITEM 7b

15



Community Sub-Group Report
GTDP Board Meeting Friday 16th June 2017

Since the previous Board Meeting on 21st April, the Sub-Group has met once on 19th
May. As usual, the issues discussed at the meeting have largely been dictated by the
concerns raised by the public. Particular items of interest, and issues we have agreed to
raise with the Board are listed below.

Thetford Bus Interchange Queries

A number of public comments have been received detailing various issues with the Bus
Interchange. These included the fact that the interactive screen is still not working, the
lack of a crossing on Minstergate for pedestrian movement from the BHF Store or the
Priory to Wilko or the Town Centre, the lack of “No Entry” traffic signs at the bus exit to
the Interchange, the lack of shelter provided by the bus shelters, and the arrangements for
tour bus operator use. I wrote to the Public Transport Team at Norfolk County Council
on 16th January asking for more information about some of these issues. At the time of
writing I have only received a reply on one of the issues. (The interactive screen is now
working.) Despite chasing this up several times myself, raising this at the previous Board
Meeting, and asking the County Council’s representative on the Board to follow this up, I
have still yet to receive a substantive response on the three outstanding issues. However,
today someone from Norfolk CC has finally got back to me acknowledging my request and
offering to engage. I am hopeful that there will be something positive to report at the
Board meeting.

New GTDP Website

Following work by the Sub-Group, the new GTDP Website was launched a few weeks ago.
The address remains the same: http://www.gtdp.org.uk/. Much of the work involved
re-arranging existing content, and filling in gaps, to make the site more informative and
user-friendly. In particular, the news page at http://www.gtdp.org.uk/news is now more
populated and there is space at http://www.gtdp.org.uk/get-involved to publicise
local consultations. We would encourage GTDP Partners to make use of these pages.

AGENDA ITEM 8

1116

http://www.gtdp.org.uk/
http://www.gtdp.org.uk/news
http://www.gtdp.org.uk/get-involved


Unfortunately, we are still waiting for information from the Planning & Projects Sub-
Group to expand on their page at http://www.gtdp.org.uk/planning-projects-subgroup.
We also have a list of further improvements we would like to make to the website. Some
of the more significant items are as follows:

• We would like to see photos and contact details provided for the Board and Sub-
Group members (e.g. at http://www.gtdp.org.uk/board-members), so that we
seem more approachable to the public.

• We would like to see more information about the various development and re-
generation projects at http://www.gtdp.org.uk/regeneration so that the public
is better informed about the future plans.

• The “About the Partnership” page at http://www.gtdp.org.uk/about needs re-
freshing once the vision, aims, and objectives are published.

Planning & Projects Sub-Group Meetings

The Community Sub-Group representative on the Planning & Projects Sub-Group re-
ported that the latter was considering revisions to its Terms of Reference. In particular,
the issue of whether or not its meetings should be held in public was to be re-examined.
This was discussed by the Community Sub-Group, and it was decided to maintain our
previous position in favour of the meetings being held in public. This was to ensure trans-
parency and accountability, and to avoid giving the impression to the public that we had
things to hide from them. We also believe that it is important — and perhaps even more
so than allowing the public to attend meetings — that a summary of the key items dis-
cussed and agreed at each meeting are published in a timely fashion, so that those who
are unable to attend can discover what has gone on.

Integrated Transport Planning

Various transport issues have been raised frequently by members of the public, and con-
cern has been expressed about the piecemeal nature of current thinking, with different
organisations looking at different small pieces of the same bigger picture. This is perhaps
inevitable, owing to local government organisation and the nature of resource availability.
However, it was felt that the Board should take more of an overview of transport and
ensure a more coordinated and combined approach.

Proposal: The Board agrees that there should be an integrated transport plan
for Thetford.

It was also noted at our meeting that since the ‘Thetford Car Park and Pedestrian Signing’
consultation, we have heard nothing further from Norfolk County Council, either about
their response to the consultation views, or about the implementation of the proposed
schemes. I was under the impression that the money needed to be spent before the end
of the financial year, so it seems odd that nothing has happened yet. The GTDP Chair
was asked a few weeks ago if an update could be provided at this Board meeting.

1217

http://www.gtdp.org.uk/planning-projects-subgroup
http://www.gtdp.org.uk/board-members
http://www.gtdp.org.uk/regeneration
http://www.gtdp.org.uk/about


Board Transparency and Information Provision

The Sub-Group is becoming increasingly concerned about the lack of transparency and
provision of information from the Board. This is having a detrimental effect on public
confidence in the GTDP and we feel that significant improvements are needed. Specifically:

1. At the time of writing, there is still no public draft of the Minutes from the last Board
meeting available on the GTDP website. It is now over six weeks since that meeting,
and the Board has previously agreed to do its best to publish the draft within two
weeks. The delay is particularly disappointing given that this was specifically raised
as an issue at the last meeting.

Proposal: The Board reaffirms and strengthens its commitment to pub-
lishing draft minutes within two weeks of each meeting. A service-level
agreement should be sort with Breckland DC over the timing of the pro-
vision of an internal draft for checking prior to publication.

It should also be noted that the draft minutes for the latest Community Sub-Group
meeting have also not been published yet, as we have yet to receive them from
Breckland.

2. The Sub-Group also felt that in terms of allowing members of the public to follow
the Board’s work, two weeks is too long to wait after each meeting to find out about
the business transacted. We would therefore like to see some sort of press release
or quick summary of the key points from the meeting made available much more
quickly after each meeting – ideally within a day. We have agreed to do this for the
Community Sub-Group (an example can be found at http://goo.gl/NKNF98) and
would like to suggest that the Board does the same.

Proposal: The Board agrees to produce a quick public summary of the
main discussion points and agreements, to be published within 24 hours
of the end of each meeting.

3. The Sub-Group was concerned that the public were not being kept up to date with
any progress (or lack thereof) with the SUE. A timetable was previously published
in the ‘Integrated Delivery Plan’ from the Planning & Projects Sub-Group, but
no official updates have been received since. The Sub-Group felt that it would
be reasonable to expect a regular update on the two-monthly cycle of the Board
meetings, even if this was only to confirm that the previously published timetable
still held.

Proposal: The Board agrees to arrange for updates on the SUE and TEP
timetable and progress to be provided and made public every two months,
in order that the public and other stakeholders be kept up to date.

Robert Whittaker
GTDP Community Sub-Group Chair
07-Jun-2017

1318

http://goo.gl/NKNF98


Greater Thetford Development Partnership Board
Minutes

21st April 2017 at 10.00am
The Charles Burrell Centre, Staniforth Road, Thetford

Chair: Graham Jermyn GJ

Attendees:
Board Members
Mike Brown MB(Thetford Business Forum), Tony Poulter TP(Brettenham & Kilverstone 
Parish Council), Robert King RK(Croxton Parish Council), Terry Jermy TJ (Thetford Town 
Council), John Newton JN(Sub)(Thetford Town Council), Robert Campbell RC(Breckland 
Council – sub-group chair), Denis Crawford DC(Norfolk County Council), Richard Doleman 
RD(Norfolk County Council), Rob Walker RW(Breckland Council), Robert Whitaker 
RWh(Communities sub-group chair), Robert Howes-Ward RHW(Primary Care/Health 
Care), Caroline Money CM(Norfolk County Council), Adam Broadway AB(Flagship), Paul 
Wheatley PW(Norfolk Police)

Minutes
Helen McAleer HM(Breckland Council)

Apologies: 
Sam Chapman-Allen SCA(Breckland Council), Will Van Cutsem WVC(Pigeon), Chris Hey 
CH(Norfolk County Council)

Item
Robert Howes-Ward was welcomed to the Partnership and introductions were 
made round the table.

The meeting would start with a Private session which would be followed by a 
public session.  The Chairman had received some criticism about lack of 
transparency and he asked for a view about having a pre-meeting instead of a 
private session.    He recognised the need for transparency, but felt it was critical 
to complete the work on vision and objectives and to reach agreement before 
making that public.  Once agreement had been reached progress could be made.

RW thought that private sessions were OK as long as they were used 
appropriately.  It would also be helpful if support officers could meet between 
Board meetings. 

TJ did not have a problem with using private sessions, as long as the public part of 
the meetings was better publicised to promote engagement.  

RWh agreed that there was a place for private discussion but it needed to be 
made clear to the public what was being discussed and why it needed to be in 
private and a summary of outcomes should be available for the public record. 

PRIVATE SESSION Action

1. Review of Vision and Objectives and Key Issues, agreement on 
consultation and publication.

RW tabled a paper which set out the outcomes from the last meeting 
and the away days.  Some amendments had been made to the 

19



Objectives to make them plainer and minor additions had been made 
in accordance with suggestions from the last meeting.

After discussion it was agreed that RW would make the changes 
suggested and circulate the amended list which could then be signed 
off in public at the next meeting. 

The six Objectives were AGREED.

RW

2. Planning and Projects Sub Group’s proposals re Green 
Infrastructure

This item had been included on the agenda because of its 
relationship to the objectives.

It was agreed that the covering report could be made public and the 
Chairman asked for the proposals to be considered in the open 
session of the meeting.  

The Chairman asked that the contribution that Richard Wills had 
made to the firming up of the aims and objectives by facilitating the 
away days be minuted.

PUBLIC SESSION
3. Apologies.

Apologies were received from William van Cutsem, Sam Chapman-
Allen and Chris Hey.

On behalf of Board, the Chairman thanked Tig Armstrong and Rob 
Cooper for their contribution to the board and welcomed Robert 
Howes-Ward as Rob Cooper’s replacement.

4. Minutes and Matters Arising from meeting of 17 February 2017.

The Minutes of the meeting held on 17 February 2017 were agreed 
and the following matters were noted:

Item 3:  A Public Space Protection Order was out for consultation.  
Feedback was encouraged and additional copies of the consultation 
were requested to be made available in places such as the Charles 
Burrell Community Centre. 

Item 5.  The Scouts had been put in contact with the Asset Team.
With regard to the Cottage Hospital, RHW was on the Board to 
represent local surgeries.  Grove surgery were working on a small 
extension to the rear but that was being frustrated by lack of space.  
The cottage hospital site was immediately behind the surgery.  It 
used to be in public ownership.  He was trying to work with NHS 
England on an estate strategy for health care and he asked if the 
cottage hospital site was still under review.

RW advised that a petition about the cottage hospital had been 
considered by BDC Council.  The site was in private ownership and 
following receipt of the petition, the owners had been contacted and 

RW

20



were now in pre-planning consultation about a positive use of the 
site. RW would keep the Board updated on progress.

TJ had been contacted by the GPs from Grove Surgery and he 
thought there was potential for an exciting project which the Board 
could facilitate.  Further discussion between TJ and RW would take 
place outside the meeting.

Item 8 – Health and LEP representatives would be invited later in the 
year once the aims and objectives had been confirmed.

RW

TJ/RW

5. Matters arising from work on Vision and Objectives

These would be amended and circulated ready for sign off and 
agreement of a work programme at the next meeting.

RW

6. Communities Sub Group (Update) 

The following matters from the Sub-Group were noted:

 King Street Square – possible health and safety issues were 
raised by MB.  The issues would be flagged to the Town 
Council as the responsible authority.

 Thetford Bus Interchange - DC as the NCC representative 
was asked to seek a response to the concerns raised.

 The GTDP website – content needed improvement.  Andy 
Prior was waiting for feedback before updating the site.

 The sub-group would meet bi-monthly in future at King’s 
House.

 A Cycling and Walking Routes survey was being carried out 
and the sub-group were assisting that work.

 Concerns had been raised about GTDP lack of transparency 
and late papers.

 The sub-group had not been notified about the PSPO 
consultation before it commenced.

 Information on the SUE development was requested.  RW 
would contact Pigeon for an update.  Rumours about the 
school provision needed to be clarified. 

 Concern had been expressed about burial provision.

JN

DC

RC/RD/RW

RW/WVC/
CH

TJ/JN

7. Planning and Projects Sub Group (Update)

The sub-group had met on 24 March and had considered the 
objectives being set by the Board and reflected on how the group 
could help to identify projects which the Board could prioritise for 
future delivery.

There was a lot of evidence available but it was not always easily 
accessible and there would definitely be a benefit to bring that 
evidence together and make it available.

RD said it would be good to have steer from the Board on what the 
sub-group should work on; it could then develop a programme of 
activity.

21



It was AGREED that:

 The Planning & Projects Sub Group should expand the 
review of the existing evidence base to cover further key 
themes.  The Planning & Projects Sub Group to suggest 
further themes for the Board that warrant further evidence 
review.

 The Board would agree how potential projects should be 
considered by the GTDP to develop and deliver priorities;

 A review of the Planning & Projects Sub-Group’s Terms of 
Reference be undertaken.

8. Inward Investment Sub Group (Update)

The Sub Group had met to review and comment on the six 
objectives.  It had also considered its Terms of Reference.

The sub group had been set up to look for funding to support 
projects, but it had not received any requests for assistance.

MB said the Business Forum were frustrated by the lack of progress 
with the TEP.  In particular, the allocation of over £500k from 
Breckland Council funds towards a roundabout that did not appear to 
be going ahead.
 
MB asked for more detail at the next meeting including the funds that 
have been raised for the TEP project and timescales for further 
progress.
 
RC explained that that was a large on-going project which was being 
driven separately from the sub group.  The role of the sub group was 
to focus on new projects.  He had attended meetings about the 
design of the TEP roundabout and more work was being done to re-
cost the project.

The Chairman confirmed that as pressure points arose the Board 
would lobby and provide input, but at the previous meeting he had 
made clear that the Partnership was not just about the TEP and the 
SUE.  It needed to be involved in other things.  

TJ asked who was leading the TEP project and he was advised that 
NCC would design and project manage the roundabout.  The 
contractor has not been chosen yet.  He was still not convinced that 
it would go ahead.

RC explained that there were a number of constraints to the site, 
including a lack of access, shortage of power and no utilities.  They 
were all detrimental to getting private investment.  It had been 
agreed that removing one of those by providing a roundabout access 
would encourage private investment.  To bring new business to 
Thetford a new tech site was needed.  Discussion with partners was 
on-going about potential funding for power.

22



More detail would be provided at the next meeting.
RW/RC

9. Any Other Business

None.

10. Date of Next Meeting

The next meeting will be held on Friday 16 June 2017 at 10.00am in 
the Back Hall, Church on the Way, Grenville Way, Thetford, IP24 
2JH.

Meeting closed at 12.00noon.

23


	Agenda
	1 Greater Thetford Development Partnership
	GTDP_Draft Minutes _20170421_public




